

BROOKLYN VILLAGE NEWS July 15, 2013

Clerk's Office - 455-4201 Fax - 455-1385 PO Box 189 210 Commercial St Email: clerk@brooklynwi.gov

Public Works Dept. - 455-1842 Fax - 455-1501 102 Windy Lane Email: publicworks@brooklynwi.gov Police Department - 455-2131 Fax – 455-1799 Email: police@brooklynwi.gov

Municipal Court - 455-1168 Email: brooklynjudge@charter.net

Village Board - Nadine Walsten, President Economic Development – Heather Kirkpatrick, Chair Finance – Vacant, Chair Ordinance – John McNaughton, Chair Personnel – Vacant, Chair Planning/Zoning – Nadine Walsten, Chair Public Works – Todd Klahn, Chair Recreation – Stacey Hardy, Chair Safety – Sue McCallum, Chair



BROOKLYN VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES July 8, 2013

The Village Board meeting was called to order by President Walsten on July 8, 2013 at 6:31 p.m. Trustees Lust, Frandy, and McCallum were present. Trustee Klahn arrived at 6:37 p.m. Trustees Van Den Eng and McNaughton were absent with the exception of a conference call for voting as described later. Others present were Clerk Strause, PW Director Langer, Chief Barger, Heather Kirkpatrick, Laura Clark-Hansen, Keith Arndt, Brit Springer, Josh Straka, and Wm Brockman. The Pledge of Allegiance was cited by all. **Public Comments**: Keith Arndt asked the Board to reconsider their previous vote on the berm for the Business Complex. Arndt stated all neighbors with land abutting the park are involved and want the berm. He asked the Board to take their back yards into consideration, their view, the sound that may come from future development.

Trustee Frandy moved, second Lust, carried to approve the minutes of 6-10-13. Trustee Lust moved, second Frandy, carried to approve the minutes of 6-24-13.

President Walsten reported on the League of Municipality's Board meeting that she will attend July 10-12 in Green Lake. Agenda includes selecting workshop topics for the fall conference. The agenda was distributed and Walsten invited the trustees to offer suggestions for workshop topics for the Fall Annual conference. Another topic will be discussion of the League's partial funding the Local Government Institute. Thursday there is an Ice Cream Social fundraiser for the Oregon Senior Center.

Clerk Strause gave a financial update with May deposits of \$66,033, expenses \$433,130 and an end of month balance of \$1,169,085 for all funds.

PUBLIC WORKS: Lust moved, second Frandy, carried to approve the committee's recommendation that two older generators at the WWTP be declared surplus and have Director Langer decide on the way to dispose of either by sale or trade in, whichever is most economical to the Village. RFP's were sent to nine contractors for new generators. Only one company, PDC, offered a proposal for three generators less a deduct at \$81,700. 2013 generator budgets include \$22,500 each from water and sewer fund and \$10,000 from the emergency management budget for a total of \$55,000. Sale or trade in of old generators could offer \$5-8,000, leaving a shortfall for the purchase of three generators. The three generators include one for well #2, one portable trailer unit for the three sewer lift stations and Community Building, and a permanent emergency backup generator for the Community Building because it is the Emergency Operations Center should a disaster strike the village (i.e. tornado, etc.) rather than rotate use with the three lift stations. Purchasing all three generators would be ideal as during a disaster, the mobile generator wouldn't be able to power lift stations and Community Building/EOC simultaneously. Klahn moved, second Frandy, carried to postpone and have public works committee look at other options, explore ideas with the contractor, including possible purchase of used generators. The DNR Urban Forestry Catastrophic Grant will provide \$23,368 for pruning 115 trees and removing 6 trees in Mt. Hope Cemetery due to the December 2012 snow storm. Since that storm, a spruce tree was hit by lightening and needs to be taken down. Six new trees will be planted and is included in the grant funding. Eleven companies were contacted and four responded with proposals. Whitney Tree Service was the lowest price for tree pruning, removal, stump grinding, and planting at \$15,718.00. Klahn moved, second Lust, carried to hire Whitney not to exceed grant money of \$23,368.00. The **2013 DNR Urban Forestry Grant** is a matching grant for \$5,000. Four proposals were received with Jim's Tree Service being the lowest in the amount of \$6587 for 9 tree removals. Klahn moved, second Frandy, carried to hire Jim's Tree Service to remove 9 trees only at a cost of \$6587 which includes stump grinding. In kind labor added to the contract cost will maximize the \$5,000 matching grant. Langer reported on **recent flooding issues**. The Village pumped down the Lincoln St pond with water eventually flowing through the newly installed DOT storm water system crossing St Hwy 92. Per Trustee Klahn, the new system is working properly. Langer and Spilde looked at some basements that had ground water coming in. The WWTP is taking in approximately 285,000 gal/day from ground water getting into the system. Two manholes were found to have ground water entering at full stream with one at Bowman and First Streets and the other one inside the gate at the treatment plant. Both manholes are being fixed for under \$5,000. Televising a sewer line in an easement off of W. Main St. should also be done. Sand and bags were placed in the Community Building parking lot for residents that needed them. Information was also on the website. Langer reported **mowing 9-10 lots** to bring into compliance with Village ordinance with some lots mowed twice. Bills have been sent for this work. Holt Road paving project is done with LRIP funding request to be submitted soon. Smithfield Park shelter roof replacement is complete with work done by Dan

Olson. Nine companies were contacted for **Community Building bathroom repairs/replacement of exhaust fans, windows** to save energy. No one replied with an offer. The **dedication of the small diamond fence at Legion Park** was held June 18. The **Oregon Girls fast pitch donated \$8,000 for rehabilitating the small diamond, including a new fence, creating two softball diamonds for league play.** The diamonds are being used almost every night and week-ends by the OGFPS Association program with tournaments planned.

Board consensus was to move up on the agenda discussion on approval of the final bid specifications for the Business Complex. Trustees Van Den Eng and McNaughton attended by speaker phone for further discussion on berm options. Previously the Board approved a combination of options A&B for infrastructure design which did not include a berm. Tree planting was also removed from the infrastructure bidding process with the Village to bid separately at a later date. Josh Straka, Strand, Eng., presented recalculations for a 3' high berm vs. the previously discussed 5' high berm. Scaling back to a 3' berm that would be 20' wide and a swale on both sides for drainage is estimated to cost \$8,050 and does not include any cost for trees. Low grow, no mow grasses would be planted on the rather steep 3' berm. Trustee Klahn said he was opposed to the cost of the 5' berm but would approve a 3' berm with the Village planting trees next fall. Trustee McNaughton felt the berm will possibly keep water from going into homeowners' yards from the Business Complex. Trustee Van Den Eng stated the cost for the 3' berm is affordable with no trees at this time. Trustee Frandy stated she would not support the berm because of the cost, setting precedence requiring extension of the berm as the business park developed, and concerns the berm would prevent stormwater drainage, causing flooding of the lowest properties. Straka suggests the 3' berm and swale to be 10' off the residential property lines with a 2/1 slope. The 20' wide berm + 10' setback is equal to the rear vard building setback requirements of the Business Complex at 30'. Who would maintain the berm until the lot is sold was discussed. Having the contractor do the maintenance the first two years would add cost to the bid placing more liability on the contractor. Trustee McCallum questioned where the plan for the swales originated as from the beginning the Planning & Zoning Commission discussed the berm but now the Board is looking at three choices. McCallum asked what the water flow historical data is in the area of the proposed berm and why swales are needed at all as the property owners report there has not been water issues in their back yards. She also asked where the money comes from for engineering redesign and when the engineering costs will stop. Straka stated if a berm is built, swales are needed for proper drainage. Trustee Klahn commented that the elevation of the area will be changed and the normal flow will change needing the swales to take water to St Hwy 92 on the residential side. Walsten said the project bidding time is now beyond the timeline and the Board needs to keep this project moving to stay on track and not jeopardize our CDBG funding. Van Den Eng stated he did not support the berm at the last meeting because of the cost for a 5' berm and would not support the 3' berm unless there is a swale on both sides. Van Den Eng moved to approve a 3' tall berm with a swale on both sides, not including any trees at this time. amending his motion to include the swale on the residential side be 10' off the property line. Trustee Klahn second the motion with voting as follows: AYE: McNaughton, Van Den Eng, Klahn, Lust, Walsten. NAY: Frandy. Abstain-McCallum. Motion carried. Trustee McNaughton signed off the conference call at this time.

President Walsten read **Trustee Van Den Eng's resignation letter**. Trustee Klahn moved, second Frandy, carried to accept his resignation. President Walsten thanked Van Den Eng for his service to the community and the Village Board and read his Certificate of Appreciation that will be mailed to him. Van Den Eng signed off the conference call at this time.

President Walsten recommended the **appointment of Laura Clark-Hansen as trustee to complete the unexpired term of Van Den Eng.** Clark-Hansen lives on Second St, she and her husband own their own business, has a background in communications and committed to civic issues in the Village. Walsten moved, second Frandy, carried to approve her appointment. Trustee McCallum objected to the appointment as she felt "a qualified write in candidate in the last April election should have been given the opportunity to fill the position". Walsten gave the Oath of Office to Clark-Hansen. Board members introduced themselves.

Safety Committee: Chief Barger stated **Policy 114** is being reviewed by Dane County Public Safety Communications Center staff. The committee discussed the **mis-handling of an EMS call in the Village**. Fire Chief Spilde has filed a complaint with the Dane County Public Safety Communications Center in regards to this incident. We are waiting for a reply. **Two bike ride groups will be coming through the Village on August 4th** anticipating up to 1700 bicyclists. Banners will be put up welcoming them. **Fireworks safety tips** are posted on the website. There have been some **water leaks in the PD office** and PW Director Langer is working on finding the source. The roof was fixed in 2009. One community is leaving the **consortium of the New World/LERMS Records Management System** by 12/31/13. This system has been difficult to work with and has been very costly. Barger will research the possibility of the Village also leaving the consortium. Walsten stated she will report to the Dane County Cities and Villages about the complaints with the New World Records Management System as a lot of money has been put into this system for many years which is now proving to have failed and is not user friendly. Chief Barger met with the Personnel Committee regarding hiring a part time officer. McCallum moved, second Frandy, carried to approve the Personnel Committee's recommendation to **hire Randy Burns as a part-time patrol officer** at \$18 per hr upon completion of a satisfactory background check, medical examination, psychiatric evaluation, and negative drug test with an 18 month probationary period. Another joint meeting needs to be held between Safety and Personnel to discuss the **attorney's opinion on release of information**.

NEW BUSINESS: An **Application Packet for Site Plan Review** was presented. Village Zoning Administrator, Rob Roth, worked on the packet. A filing fee will cost \$385 and replaces the existing cost recovery agreement with more detail. Frandy moved, second Klahn to accept the packet as is. Frandy moved, second Klahn, carried to amend the motion to add another question line on page 2 to ask "is this a commercial development"?. **Dollar General will be making a proposal** before Planning & Zoning Commission on July 22.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: Walsten read portions of Chapter 19.03-4 of the Fire Code and 19.03-18(1) prohibiting burning of construction waste and debris and outdoor fires. Frandy moved, second Klahn, carried to approve and **exemption to the code to allow downed trees in the area of the demolished farm buildings at the Business Complex to be burned.** An updated **Ordinance 48-537 B-P Business Park District** adds wording related to increased required investment criteria and building design for properties adjacent to Highway 92, site plan review, maintenance of berm and drainage swales, reference of Stormwater and Erosion Control Ordinances, and adding intrusive lighting as a nuisance. Frandy moved, second Klahn, carried to approve the amendment changes. **Finalizing the CDBG contract** will include a 20% retainage of the \$261,000 grant until completion of performance indicators indicated in the Scope of Services addendum to the contract. Green County residents can be counted toward the 27 permanent jobs that need to be created in the Business Complex. Village leveraging will use borrowed money. McCallum moved, second Lust, carried to approve the CDBG contract with changes as highlighted.

After extensive research and many hours of labor, Brit Springer and Heather Kirkpatrick presented the Board with a Business Complex Logo, economic development and business complex web pages, marketing plan, and a web page for the street naming contest--with all to go live soon. They explained the need for the logo to have a modern feel with tie in to the color scheme of the current village logo. Extensive business resources will be available with links to many sites to assist a new or expanding business with Facebook and Twitter also linked. The proposed logo includes a windmill, clean linear "buildings" and a swerve foundation with the color scheme of green, gray and burgundy. McCallum stated she could not vote on the proposed logo as it would take away from the Brooklyn Historical Society's logo which is the Duplex Windmill, an early 20th century depiction of the wood windmill manufactured in Brooklyn years ago. She felt the Historical Society will have issues with the Village using a windmill in its new logo. Kirkpatrick explained the windmill in this logo is a very modern version and represents "green", contemporary energy. This logo pays tribute to Brooklyn's agrarian past but portrays moving forward. Two color schemes were presented. Klahn moved, second Frandy, carried to approve option A color scheme for the new Business Complex logo. Trustee McCallum voted Nay. Brit and Heather were thanked for the tremendous job shown during their presentation. Walsten requested alternate members be appointed to the EDC prospect team to include Scott Meier, Todd Klahn, and Errin Welty from Vierbicher. Previously approved were Attorney Christopher, Langer, Strause, Walsten, and Kirkpatrick. Frandy moved, second Lust, carried to appoint as requested. Trustee Klahn abstained.

Municipal court update-Walsten will get a proposed contract to Chief Barger for review. **Recodification**-McNaughton is gone during the month of July and Walsten will organize ordinances for their meeting when he returns. Walsten met with Gail Brown who will recruit someone from the Methodist Church to join the **Community Building Policy Review ad hoc committee**. **Oregon Senior Center draft funding agreement** was presented at their May 29th meeting. As Walsten was unable to attend, a final draft will be available for the Board's August meeting. Clerk Strause spoke on **Well #1 insurance claim denial by CNA**. A letter dated June 26th explains the investigation of the destruction and breakdown of the well and denial based on the equipment itself not failing but failure due to ground formation collapse. The total cost of the repairs was \$119,513. Strause talked to both the Village's agent and John Kramer from CNA about the disappointment in their decision. PW Director Langer has left a message with Kramer for further discussion but he has not returned his phone call as of today.

Frandy moved, second Klahn, carried to approve the Consent Agenda paying all July bills as presented.

Committee Reports: Planning & Zoning worked on updating the BP covenants at previous meeting. **Ordinance**-no meeting. **Fire/EMS** created an ad hoc committee that will be meeting on July 13th to discuss reorganization of the department. **EDC**-previously discussed. **Recreation**-Frandy reported July 4th celebration was very successful with lots of volunteers. Bills Food Center in Oregon donated \$725 to pay the final amount needed for the fireworks. Donation cans passed around the park collected \$742.33 to help pay for activity expenses including \$200 for the DJ/band. Concession items sold brought in \$726 less expenses. Summer rec is going very well under the direction of the newly hired director, Lauren Rock. Committee chair, Jill Van Den Eng, has resigned. Stacy Hardy will be the new chair. Committee will again have the bouncy house at the Labor Day celebration. **Emergency Management** will meet soon to finalize changes in PIO job description. **Personnel**-A new chair will be appointed.

Finance- Ordinance 6.08 was presented by Clerk Strause which exempts the Village from the County treasurer's bond at tax collection time. A resolution is currently in place stating the same protocol but Green County has asked for an ordinance. Frandy moved, second Klahn, carried to approve Ordinance 6.08. Strause also reported on the **2014 Wisconsin Retirement System's increase in contribution by .7%** equally divided between employer and employee. Strause explained the **Intergovernmental Agreement between Dane County** and all municipalities in the county to **purchase new election equipment and software in 2014**. One-half of the cost will be paid by Dane County. The Village's share is estimated at \$2875. The existing equipment is old and starting to fail in some communities. Dane County would like to have all municipalities on one system. Frandy moved, second Klahn, carried to approve the MOU with Dane County to purchase election equipment in 2014. There was no recycling meeting; website committee will need a new chair.

Klahn moved, second Frandy, carried to adjourn at 9:40 p.m.

Carol Strause, MMC, Village Clerk-Treas.

SENIOR POTLUCK LUNCH

Thursday, July 25th Noon Community Bldg. Kitchen (lower level) Bring a dish to pass and enjoy good company!



President's Letter July, 2013

Nadine S. Walsten

If you missed the July 4th Fireworks display and family event in Legion Park last week, you missed a wonderful, hometown event where Americana memories are made and savored for years to come! What a great fireworks show that lasted—deliciously--for almost half an hour. Just when it seemed we had seen the last, another barrage of bright, brilliant and booming pyrotechnics would light up the night sky and off we'd go again. Although the Oregon Observer article neglected to elaborate, this event came together because the Village sponsors this annual event with the generous donations of our local banks, Village consultants, local businesses, Bill's Foods, and cash dropped in the collection cans. But "hometown" America lives because of its volunteers and it was the Recreation Committee who created a family centered event with games, crafts, glow sticks, a bouncy house, treats and live music. Those opportunities, plus the richness of Legion Park, set the stage for a wonderful finale of fireworks. The Village hired Dan Dean, one of our volunteer firemen who loves pyrotechnics, to put on the fireworks show and he and his assistants did not disappoint. The fireworks was, quite frankly, the greatest!! and we had a professional company until last year. This is my favorite holiday of the year. It is hard not to sound clichéd and syrupy, but July 4th celebrates what makes what we call "our country", a sprawling land of many peoples governed by a unique, clumsy, and inefficient democratic form of government, great! A democracy asks everyone to exercise their right to speak out and to participate--which bollocks up the works right there. But these patches of interaction between "we the people" and our government creates and sustains our national heritage and our birthright to

enjoy freedoms most other people on this planet do not have. Freedom from fear, if we exercise our rights, is why we have a big party on July 4th. This is the gift we get to enjoy when the sky is lit up over our heads.

Residents on the edge of the business park exercised their rights to petition the Board and file their displeasure with the decision we reached on 6/10 to not put in a berm, only a drainage swale (shallow ditch) with 2 rows of trees to act as a visual barrier between their backyards and the backyards of businesses in the new park. They organized, created their position, defended it and, the Board reconsidered its decision and looked for a compromise. We gathered information from our engineer and as a result, the residents will have a 3' berm (not a 5' berm which the Board felt was too expensive) and we will be putting in 2 rows of trees a year from this fall. When both sides speak and both sides listen—compromise is possible. If we only have elected officials that won't speak, listen or compromise, then we have, unfortunately, what is happening on the evening news in Washington, DC.

It is especially appropriate this July that I let you know about the Brooklyn Veteran's Memorial Committee, which has been meeting for the past few months, to create a Veterans Memorial for Brooklyn area veterans. Although several members are associated with the local American Legion, this memorial committee is separate from any specific military organization and is open to all local veterans. Lyle Wanless, chairperson, says that over 500 Brooklyn area individuals are known to have served in the military beginning with the Civil War forward to today's current conflicts. The Town of Brooklyn has donated the site for the memorial next to the Brooklyn Town Hall (within the Village limits) and the committee is working on possible designs to fit that location. Once a design is selected, fundraising can begin with a goal to break ground on 4/1/2014. The Mission of the memorial is: "to honor veterans who have served, are serving and who will serve in the future to protect our democratic freedoms". The local banks will be receiving donations, which are tax deductible, when fundraising details are completed.



WATER METER ALERT!!!

The Public Works Dept. sometimes experiences problems reading meters. Brush, shrubs and flowers can grow too tall and cover outside readers. Please look at your outside meter and trim the growth back if it can't be read. Thanks for your help!

MOWING GRASS INTO THE STREETS

Do **<u>not</u>** mow grass into the streets. The grass is plugging up the storm water grates.



Calls-for-Service (CFS's) - 43

- Assists-18
- Thefts 3
- Records Request 18
- Animal 1
- Suspicious Activity 2
- 911 Disconnect 1

Traffic Incidents - 59

- Traffic Incident 16
- Traffic Citations 27
- Traffic Warnings 16

Enforcement/General Activity - 12

- Refer Dist. Atty. 1
- Misc Comp arrests 4
- Financial/Fraud 1
- Muni Ord. Viol. 1
- Alarms 1
- Juvenile Off./Comp 1
- Parking Cit./Comp 3

<u> Total Calls – 114</u>



Reminder: Second half of property taxes are due to the **County** by July 31st.



The Village Clerk's Office will be closed August 21-23, 2013 for training. We will re-open on Monday, August 26th, at 7:00am. We apologize for the inconvenience. Utility payments can be mailed, paid online, or put in the drop box outside UB&T near the drive-up exit. There is also a payment box inside UB&T by the Clerk's office door.



The Brooklyn Fire and EMS 18th Annual Labor Day Celebration will be held Aug 30-September 1. Volunteers are needed in all areas. Volunteer times are set up in 1 hour increments – you can work as much as you like. Complimentary T-shirts showing your support of this event will be supplied prior to your shift. Please contact Roseanne Meixelsperger (455-8440) to schedule your time. www.brooklynfireems.com



WRITE ONE LESS CHECK EACH MONTH! We water bill automatically on the 25th of each month. Contact Kim at 455-4201 ext. 1 for more information

News from Your Senior Center By Rachel Brickner

Access to transportation is vital to maintaining one's independence at home. Seniors may encounter challenges that make driving more difficult, or even impossible. The Oregon Area Senior Center is here to help make sure that seniors' vital transportation needs are met. The Senior Center has weekly van rides available to Bills' in Oregon, and to Pick-N-Save and Wal-Mart in Stoughton. The van will pick up and drop off at the senior's home. On the first Wednesday of each month, there is a trip to a Madison shopping destination that changes monthly, and picks up and drops off at the Senior Center. There is also a volunteer based organization, RSVP of Dane County, which can provide rides to medical appointments, the hair dresser, the social security office, etc.

While each of these programs has a suggested donation amount, no one is denied transportation due to the inability to pay that amount. Some programs require a screening form to be filled out prior to scheduling a ride, and that can be done over the phone. If you need transportation for yourself or a loved one, please call Rachel or Carol at 835-5801 to talk about the details of these programs and your needs.





July Law of the Month

Parking restrictions 32.08

Restricted Parking of Certain Vehicles. No person shall park a motorized vehicle having a licensed gross weight of 16,000 lbs. or more, or a semi-tractor, tractor, semi-trailer, school bus, mobile home on any street in the Village, except for loading and unloading in excess of thirty minutes.

Brooklyn Police Department